
resources. The bilateral agreements between the 
United States and countries of Europe were 
shameful to those countries and would reduce 
them to the status of United States colonies. He 
was glad such views could not be suppressed in 
the French Press and that the bad colonial era 
was ending. 

He was surprised at the statement of the 
United States representative, which was little 
more than a denial in general terms of what he 
(Mr. Arutiunian) had said about the Marshall 
Plan. He had expected a factual reply to his 
own factual statement. However, there was.one 
new development in that the United States repre
sentative had said that the cessation of exports 
to Europe would prod-uce a crisis in the United 
States of· America, although he claimed that it 
would only be a minor crisis, since domestic pro
duction was so large in relation 'to those exports, 
In 1929, the economic depression had occurred 
because of the fall in exports, although at that 
time they were surely far smaller in relation to 
domestic production. The U:nited .States repre
sentative had said that the exercise of control 
over the source of raw materials was a priyilege 
of the United States, as lts dollars paid for the 
raw materials. But such control was not in 
conformity with the freedom of international 
trade; it meant dictatorship of the United 
States of America. Naturally the United States 
would exercise that control in accordance with 
its own domestic interests. 

He opposed the adoption of the draft r~solu
tion proposed by the representative of France, 
since it constituted another attempt to avoid a 
debate on basic economic problems. Its adoption 
would in no way forward the work of the .Eco
nomic Commission for Europe, sin,ce in contained 
nothing but mere approval of the report. He 
urged the Council to adopt a resolution on the 
substance of the report such as the Soviet Union 
delegation h::td proposed (E/884). 

The meeting rose at 6.15 p.m. 

ONE HUNDRED AND EIGHTY
FOURTH MEETING 

Held at the Palais des Nations, Geneva, 
on Wednesday, 28 July 1948, at 3 p.m. 

President: Dr. Charles MALIK · 

16. Continuation of the discussion on 
the Report of the Economic Com
mission for Europe 1 (E/791, E/791/ 
Add. 1 and 2, E/884 and E/885). 

The PRESIDENT re-opened the discussion on the 
Report of the Economic Commission for Europe. 

· Mr. SANTA CRuz (Chile) observed that it might 
be contended that Qnly countries represented on 

l See supplement No. 10 (E/791). 

blissement d'une economie normale qu'une aide 
exterieure. Les accords bilateraux conclus entre 
les Etats-Unis et les pays de !'Europe sont une 
honte pour CeS pays et les reduii'ont au rang de 
colonies des Etats-Unis. L'orateur est heureux 
que de telles opinions ne puissent etre etouffees 
dans la presse frangaise et que l'age funeste du 
colonialisme prenne fin. 

Le representant de l'Union sovietique est sur
pris de la declaration du representant des Etats
Unis, qui n'a guere fait que nier de fagon tres 
generale ce que l'orateur lui-meme avait dit du 
plan Marshall. Ii escomptai.t une reponse objec
tive a sa propre declaration objective. Cependant, 
il s'est produit un fait nouveau: le representant 
des Etats-Unis a admis que l'arret des exporta
tions a destination de l'Europe provoquerait une 
crise aux·Etats-Unis, tout en pretendant que cette 
crise ne serait pas grave, la production nationale 
etant de beaucoup superieure a ces exportations. 
En 1929, la crise econo:riJ.ique s'est produite a 
cause de la diminution du volume des exporta
tions, bien qu 'a cette epoque, celles-ci aient ete 
assurement beaucoup plus faibles encore par rap
port a la production nationale. Le representant 
des Etats-Unis a declare qu'il etait legitime que 
ce pays exerce un controle sur l 'origine des 
maticres premieres, puisque ce sont ses dollarB 
qui servent a payer les achats de matieres pre
mieres. Mais ce controle n'est pas compatible .avec 
la liherte du commerce international; il equivaut 
a la mainmise des Etats-Unis d'Amerique. Natu
rellement, les Etats-Unis exerceront ce controle · 
de maniere a servir leurs propres interets. 

L'orateur s'opposera a !'adoption du projet 
de resolution du representant de la France parce 
qu'il ne represente qu'une nouvelle tentative pour 
eluder la discussion de problemes economiques 
essentiels. Si le. Conseil l'adoptait, cela ne ferait 
faire aucun progres aux travaux de la Commis
sion economique pour l 'Europe puisqu'il nc 
contient rien d'autre qu'une simple approbation 
du rapport. L 'orateur insiste au pres du Conseil 
pour qu'il adopte sur le fond du rapport une reso
lution du genre de celle que la delegation de 
l'Union sovietique a proposee (E/884). 

La seance est levee a 18 h. 15. 

CENT QUATRE-VINGT
QUATRIEME SEANCE 

Tenue au Palais des Nations, a Geneve, 
le mercredi 28 juillet 1948, a 15 heures 

President : M. Charles MALIK 

t6. Suite de la discussion sur le rapport 
de la Commission economique pour 
l'Europe 1 (E/791, E/791/Add. 1 
et 2, .E/884 ~t E/885). 

Le PRESIDENT rouvre la discussion sur le ·rap
port de la Commission economique pour l'Europe. 

M. SANTA CRuz (Chili) remarque que l'on pour
rait soutenir qu'il appartient exclusivement aux 

1 Voir le Supplement No 10 (E/791). 

131 



the Economic Commission for Europe should 
take part in the debate; but every country, except 
the United States, in fact benefited directly from 
the work of that commission. All the countries 
of the world were economically interdependent 
and close spiritual links united the nations· of 
Europe with those of Latin America. · The relief 
of the crisis in Europe was, therefore, of concern 
to him, as it would. have the effect. of increasing 
the well-being of Chile. 

It was for those reasons that Chile had .sup
ported the resolution 1 setting ·up the Economic 
Commission for Europe, had urged its establish
ment and felt· satisfaction at its progress. 

The Commission's Report could only be termeJ 
excellent; it showed that despite difficulties in a 
field bristling with contradictions, the setting-up 
of that type of body for international co-opera· 
tion had been a wise step. 

It further showed that the regional commis
sions were among the most useful instruments at 
the disposal of the Council· for creating condi
tions of stability and well-being, and for facili
tating the solution of international economic 
problems. 

The Report led to the encoUraging conclusion 
that the body in question ~ould adequately fulfil 

. the purposes for which it had been set up ; in 
that connexion, the work carried out in the field 
of coal· allocations should be u:iven. special 
mention. 

With regard to inland water transport, the 
Report showed that the working party con
cerned had thought it necessary to have a new 
census taken, but that it had been_impossible to 
implement that decision owing to the refusal of 
certain governments to co-operate. The Report 

· did not specify which countries had prevented 
the Commission from obtaining the ·necessary 
information; but the countries involved clearly 
had a curious conception of international co
operation; 

The majority of Council members had recog
nized the importance of the Report. 

The representative of the Soviet Union had 
stated, however, that the Commission had not 
studied the essential problems of reconstruction 
and development of European countries. To 
support that assertion he had cite.d the Commis
sion's terms of reference. It was undoubtedly 
true that those terms of reference were. very far
reaching, but at the time· when the Commission 
had been set up, it had always been spoken of as a 
temporary body which was to dea:I. mainly with 
the problems of European reconst,ruction, and do 
so more rapidly than the· functional commis
sions. When the idea of setting up special 
regional commissions had been born, it had been 
said that the Economic Comniission for Europe 
would deal only with urgent problems of recon-

. 1 See Economic and Social Council Resolutions, fourth 
session, resolution 36 (IV}. 

pays representes a la Commission economique 
pour l'Europe de participer au debat; mais, a 
!'exception des Etats-Unis, chaque pays tire en 
realite un benefice direct des travaux de cette 
commission .. Il existe une interdependance eco
nomique entre· tous les peuples. du monde, et 
des liens spirituels unissent etroitement les 
nations de l'Europe et les nations de l'Amerique 
latine. L'attenuation de la crise europeenne inte
resse done l'orateur, puisqu'(,llle aura pour effet 
d'augmenter la prosperite du Chili. 

C'est pour ces raisons que le Chili a appuye 
la resolution 1 instituant la Commission econo
mique pour l'Europe, qu'il a insiste pour que 
cette Commission flit effectivement creee et qu'il 
est satisfait de constater ses progres. 

On ne peut qualifier le rapport de la Commis
sion qu'en disant qu'il est excellent; il demontre 
en effet qu'en depit des difficultes d'un terrain 
herisse de contradictions, ce fut une mesure 
pleine de sagesse que de creer un organisme de 
collaboration internationale de ce genre. 

Ce rapport demontre en outre que les commis
sion regionales sont au nombre des plus utiles 
instruments dont dispose le Conseil pour . creer 
des conditions de stabilite et de prosperite, et 
pour faciliter la solution des problemes interna
tionaux d'ordre economique. 

Ce rapport conduit a cette conclusion encoura
geante, que l'organisme en question est capable 
d'atteindre les fins pour lesquelles il a ete cree j 
a cet egard, il importe de signaler tout particu
lierement le travail accompli dans le domaine de 
la repartition du charbon. 

En' ce qui concerne les transports par voies 
navigables interieures; le rapport indique que 
le groupe de travail competent a estime neces
saire de proceder a un nouveau rencensement, 
mais que cette decision n'a pu etre executee en 
raison du refus de collaborer de certains ·gou
vernements. Le rapport ne dit pas expressement 
quels sont les pays qui ont empeche la Commis
sion de se procurer les renseignements necessai
res; toutefois, il est evident que ces pays ont une 
bien curieuse conception de la collaboration 
internationale. 

La. majorite des membres du Conseil ont 
reconnu l'impoitance du rapport. 

Toutefois, le representant de l'Union sovietique 
a declare que la Commission avait elude l'examen 
des problemes essentiels de la reconstruction et 
du developpement des pays europeans. A l'appui 
de cette affirmation, il a cite le mandat de la 
Commission. Il est incontestable que ce mandat 
est tres vaste, mais lorsque la Commission a ete 
creee, elle a toujours ete consideree comme un 
organisme transitoire qui avait pour mission 
principale de s'occuper des problemes que pose la 
reconstruction de l'Europe, plus promptement 
que ne font les commissions techniques. Lorsque 
l'idee s'est fait jour de creer des commissions 
regionales speciales, on a dit que la Commission 
economique pour l'Europe ne s'occuperait que 
des problemes urgents de la reconstruction. Par 

1 Voir E~soZutions au ConseiZ ~conomique et social, 
quatrieme session, resolution 36 (IV). 

132 



struction. At a later stage, the Commission 
would undoubtedly have to concern itself with 
economic development.· · 

In his opinion, the Commission should first of 
all deal with the problems for which it had been 
set up. The shortage of coal, the dislocation of 
transport, and the housing shortage were most 
pressing problems ; they had to be tackled imme
diately. To maintain the opposite view, a 
year and a half after the establishment of the 
Commission, was pure demagogy. 

The Commission had benefited from the colla
boration of certain specialized agencies and had 
enjoyed the services of a remarkable secretariat. 
The Survey of the Economic Situation and 
Prospects of. Europe, which had recently been 
published, would be of inestimable value forthe 
future work of the Commission. A study of 
that type would serve as a model for the other 
regional commissions, and the Economic Commis
sion for Latin America had already asked its 
Executive Secretary to prepare a report on the 
sanie lines. ·· 

Nevertheless, the S1trvey called for certain 
remarks. In the first place, he deplored the 
lack of information on certain countries, and the 
fact that the data were presented in such varying 
form that it was impossible to treat the situation 
in all countries on the same basis. 

Statistical data on the Soviet Union and the 
Eastern European countries were almost en
tirely lacking, so that it was not exactly known 
how far reconstruction had proceeded in these 
countries. Some of the annexes included studies 
of a very general nature on the Central and . 
South-Eastern European countries. They con
tained general information, but none of those 
concrete facts which the Commission· needed for 
a comprehensive analysis. The Secretariat and 
the Commission had received only. limited co
operation in the preparation of a report which 
must serie as the basis for European recon
struction. 

In those circumstances, the Commission could 
hardly be criticized for not having ·undertaken 
any essential work. 

Considerable hopes of improvement might be 
entertained if the Executive Secretary could 
secure information as to what Europe might 
expect from the Soviet Union and the Eastern 
European countries. But it must be noted that 
the Soviet Union Govermnent had made a State 
secret of the most ordinary economic information. 
Without any desire to interfere iri the domestic 
affairs of another country, it should be empha
sized that any nation which condemned to forced 
labour those who provided economic information 
to outside agencies could not fail to hinder con~ 
siderably the collection of data needed by the 
Economic Commission for Europe. · 

A member of the Council had accused a Mem
ber State of the United Nations of prosecuting 
the deliberate exploitation of a part of Europe 
and of preparing for war against another colm
try. Such an accusation had never before been 
h~ard in that place. Its author was the repre
sentative who had protested when another mem-

la suite, · la Commission· devra certainement 
s'intere'sser au developpement economique. 

A son avis, la Commission doit en premier lieu 
se. consacrer aux prciblemes pour lesquels elle a 
ete creee. La penurie de charbon, la desorganisa
tion des transports et le manque de logements 
sorit les problemes les plus urgents, qu'il faut 
attaquer sans retard. Soutenir le contraire, un 
an et demi apres la creation: de la Commission, 
c'est pure demagogic. 

La Commission a beneficie de la collaboration 
de. certaines institutions specialisees et des ser
vices d'un Secretariat remarquable. L'Etude sur 
la situation et les perspectives economiques de 
l'Europe, recemment publiee, sera d'une valeur 
inestimable ·. pour les trayaux futurs de la 
Commission. Une etude de ce genre servira de 
modele aux autres commissions regionales, et la 
Commission economique pour l'Am~rique latine 
a deja demande a son Secretaire executif d'eta
blir un rapport analogue. 

Neanmoins, !'Etude appelle certaines obser
vations. Tout d'abord, le representant du Chili 
deplore le manque de renseignements concernant 
certains pays, et regr.ette que les donnees soient 
presentees sous des formes si. diverses, qu'il est 
impossible d'envisager de fac;on uniforme la situa
tion de tous les pays. 

Les donnees statistiques sur l'Union sovietique 
et les pays de l'est de !'Europe font presque 
totalement defaut, de sorte que l'on ne sait pas 
exactement ou en est l'muvre ·de reconstruction 
dans ces pays. Certaines des annexes contiennent 
des etudes d'un caractere tres general sur les 
pays du centre et du sud-est de l'Europe. Elles 
contiennent des renseignements generaux, mais 
aucun de ces faits positifs dont la Commission a 
besoin pour une analyse d'ensemble. Le Secre
tliriat et la Commission n'ont beneficie que d'une 
cooperation limitee dans la preparation d'un rap
port qui doit etre a la base de la reconstruction 
europeenne. 

On ne saurait, dans ces conditions, reprocher 
a la Commission de n'avoir entrepris aucun tra
vail essentiel. 

II serait possible de coricevoir de grands espoirs 
d'amelioration, si le Secretaire executif p<mvait 
obtenir des. precisions sur ce que l'Europe peut 
attendre de l'Union sovietique et des pays de 
1 'Est. Mais il faut constater que le Gouvernement 
de l'Union sovietique a fait un secret d'Etat des 
renseignements economiques les plus courants. 
Sans vouloir aucuhement s 'immiscer dans les 
affaires interieures d 'un autre pays, il faut' rele
ver qu 'une nation qui condamne aux travaux 
forces quicorique donne des · renseignements 
d'ordre economique ·a. des organismes etrangers,. 
ne peut manquer de gener sensiblerrient la Com
mission €conomique ·pour l 'Em•ope dans le ras
semblement des renseignements dont elle a besoin. 

Un menibre du Conseil a accuse un Etat Mem
bre de !'Organisation' des Nations Unies de se 
livrer a une exploitation deliberee d'une partie 
de l'Europe et de preparer la gtierre contre un 
autre pays. Jamais une accusation semblable n'a 
ete . portee dans .c~tte enceinte. Or !'auteur de 
cette accusation n'etait autre que le represen" 

l33 



her of the Council had wished to introduce poli
tics into the discussions. That same represen
tative had accused the United States of America, 
France and the United Kingdom .of wishing to 
avoid discussion .. From one point of view, per
haps, he was right, but tl).e representative who 
answered him had not said w:hy the accuser so 
strongly opposed the Marshall Plan .. ·.The speech 
of the Soviet Union representative was not inten
ded to convince members of the Council. His aim 
was to persuade the peoples of Europe, by means 
of propaganda, that United States aid should be 
refused, because it would result in economic 
exploitation by America and in preparation· for 
war. 'The reason for the persistent efforts of the 
Soviet Union representative was that it was con
sidered in certain circles that European recon
struction would bring stability and well-being, 
which would make it impossible to pursue political 
activities that required the misery and hunger 
of the people for their success. 

The peoples of Europe had not been, and 
would not be, deceived by such propagimda. The 
Marshall Plan was aiding them in their efforts 
at reconstruction by providing them with goods 
which could only be obtained from overseas. It 
would be interesting to know· how far the Soviet 
Union was disposed to co-operate in the recon
struction of Europe. All that was known so far 
was its refusal to do so, and the campaign waged 
by the Communist parties of Europe against the 
Marshall Plan. It would be interesting to know 
what solution the Soviet Union would propose 
as an alternative. It was stated in part IV (a) 
of the Report (E/791) that the Soviet Union dele
gation had criticized the Commission's work, 
blaming it for interference in the domestic affairs 
of certain States ; but every measure proposed by 
the Commission had been submitted to States for 
their prior approval. Any State which so de
sired was at complete liberty to reject any inter
vention proposed by the Economic Commission 
for Europe. 

When the Commission had been set up, its 
terms of reference had included strengthening 
the economic relations of the European countries 
both among themselves and with other countries 
throughout the world. 1 Some Latin-American 
States had asked that other countries which had 
economic relations with Europe should be mem
bers of the Commission. That principle had 
been adopted for the Economic Commission for 
Latin America, which rightly included European 
countries. · 

The representative of (Janada had suggested 
. that the expenses of the Secretariat of the Eco
nomic Commission for Europe should be charged 
to those countries which benefited by its activi
ties. That proposal was in conflict with· the 
principles of the organization for international 
co-operation - the United Nations. 

In submitting· his draft resolution (E/884), 
the Soviet Union representative had spoken of 

· .1 See Eco~om~c and Social Couincil Resolutio7!8, foutth 
seJJsion, ·resolution 36 ·(IV). · · · 

tant qui a proteste lorsqu'un autre membre. 
du Conseil voulait donner aux debats un tour 
politique. Ce meme representant a accuse .les 
Etats-Unis d'Amerique, la France et le Royaume
Uni de vouloir se derober a la discussiop.. 
D'un certain point de vue, peut-etre a-t~il 
raison, mais le representant qui lui a repondu 
a omis de dire pourquoi l'a<;cusateur combat 
si energiquement le plan Marshall. Le discours 
du representant de l'Union sovietique n'etait 
pas destine a convaincre les. membres . du 
Conseil. C'etait un discours de propagande, dont 
le but etait de faire croire aux peuples de 
l'Europe que l'aide des Etats-Unis doit etre 
refusee,. parce qu'elle aurait pour consequenc~. 
!'exploitation economique par !'Amerique et la 
preparation a la guerre. La raison des efforts 
opiniatres du representant de l'Union sovietique 
est qu'on estime, dans certains milieux, que le 
rel?wement de !'Europe aboutirait a une stabi
lite et a une prosperite qui interdiraient la pour
suite d'une activite politique dont le suces exige 
que les peuples soient miserables et affames. 

Les peuples de l'Europe ne se sont pas laisses 
et ne se laisseront pas abuser par ce genre de 
propagande. Le plan Marshall leur vient en aide 
dans leur effort de reconstruction, en leur four
nissant des produits qu'ils ne peuvent se procu
rer qu'outre-mer. II serait interessant de' savoir 
dans quelle mesure l 'Union sovietique est dis
posee a collaborer ala reconstruction de l'Europe. 
Jusqu'a present, on n'a eu connaissance que du 
refus de l'Union sovietique d'y collaborer; ainsi 
que de la campagne que les partis communistes 
d'Europe ont entamee contre le plan· Marshall. 
Il serait interessant de savoir quelle . solution 
l'Union sovietique offrirait en echange. On pent 
lire a la partie IV a) du rapport (E/791) que 
la delegation de l'Union sovietique a critique les 
travaux de ·1a Commission, et lui a reproche de 
·s.'immiscer dans les affaires interieures de cer
tains Etats; or, toute mesure proposee par la 
Commission a ete prealablement soumise a 
1 'approbation des Etats. Tout Etat qui le desire 
est parfaitement libre de refuser toute interven
tion proposee par la Commission economique 
pour l'Europe. 

Lorsque la Commission a ete creee, elle a reQU 
notamment pour mandat de renforcer les rela
tions economiques des pays d'Europe tant entre 
eux qu'avec les autres pays du monde 1. ·Certains 
Etats de !'Amerique latine avaient demande que 
d'autres pays qui entretiennent des relations 
economiques avec 1 'Europe fussent membres de 
la Commission. Ce principe a ete applique lors 
de la creation de la Commission economique de 
!'Amerique· latine ou. sont representes, . a · bqn 
droit, des Etats europeens. . 
. Le representant du Canada a propose que les 
depenses du Secretariat de la Commission econq
m,ique pour l'Europe fussent a la.charge des pays 
qui b€ne:ficient de l'activite de cette Commission. 
Cette proposition est contraire aux principes de 
cette organisation de cooperation ~nternationale 
qu'est !'Organisation des Nations Unies; ~ 

En presentant son . projet . de . resolution 
(E/884) le representant de l'Union so:vietique a 

· 1 Voir R.§solutions ilu Conseil economique et soiiial, 
quatrieme session, resolution 36 (IV). 

134 



monopolies. That resolution was drafted in the 
form of pure political propaganda. It lacked the 
sense of responsibil1ty which hitherto had always 
marked proposals submitted by members of the 
Council. It sought to compel the Council to 
take a decision similar to that which the Second 
Committee had rightly rejected at the second 
session of the General Assembly. 1 

To. discuss proposals of that kind would only 
endanger the Council's prestige. 

Mr .. SMOLIAR (Byelorussian Soviet Socialist 
Republic) said that the Report of the Economic 
Commission for Europe dealt with results 
achieved during the year immediately following 
its assumption of the task of rehabilitating the 
economies of European countries which had been 
victims of Fascist aggression. Since the cessation 
of hostilities, however, many countries had not 
waited for external aid but, by utilizing their 
own material resources, had already achieved 
considerable progress towards restoring . their 
normal economies which had been shattered by 
the war. · 

The Byelorussian Soviet Socialist Republic, 
which was one of those countries, had been occu
pied by the Fascist aggressors f01; three years. 
A large proportion of its population had been 
killed; 1,260,000 of its buildings, and a large 
proportion of its industrial plant, collective 
farms and hospitals had been destroyed: Three 
million people had lost their homes, and the 
damage caused by Fascist aggression amounted 
to 175 million roubles. But in spite of that ter
rible damage, from the very first days of their 
liberation, the people of tb<a Byelorussian SSR 
had worked at reconstruction. Homes, factories, 
schools and collective farms had risen out of the 
ruins. A five~year plan COV(;)ring the years 1946-
1950 had been initiated. It was based on the 
fullest use of available resources, and on help 
received from the other Soviet Socialist Repub
lics and from the Soviet Union as a whole. 

Production of electric power had already been 
restored to pre-war level. Industrial produc
tion had been doubled, and had almost reached 
pre-war level. The production of industrial 
equipment, particulary of machine tools, had 
improved enormously. Many new industrial 
plants had been built, and credits had been allo
cated for · erecting more. 320,000 dwelling
houses had been constructed, providing homes 
for 1,800,000 people who had previously been 
obliged to live in temporary accommodation. The 
rate of reconstruction was such that in 1946 it 
had risen to 155% compared with 1945, and in 
1947' to 132% compared with 1946. Agricul
tural production in 194 7 had exceeded that in 
1945 by· 99%. · The numbers of livestock had 
shown a . spectacular increase.. The national 
income .and national.expenditure had multiplied 
41/2 times. By 1948, trade had increased three-

. ltilee Of!icfdl Records of the General Assembly, second 
ses~ion,. Second Com,mittee~ 43rd meetip.g and annex 2 a. 

parle de monopoles. C'est un projet de resolution 
congu dans le style de la plus pure propagande 
politique. Il· manque du serieux qui a toujours 
caracterise jusqu'a present les propositions pre
sentees par les membres du Conseil. Il vise a 
arracher au Conseil une decisl.on analogue a celle 
que.la Deuxieme Commission a justement repous
see, a la deuxieme session de l' Assemblee gene
rale 1. · 

La discussion de propositions de ce genre ne 
peut que compromettre le prestige du Conseil. 

M. SMOLIAR (Repnblique socialiste sovietique 
de Bielorlissie) constate que le rapport de la 
Commission economique pour l'Europe expose les 
resultats atteints pendant l'annee qUi a immedia
tement suivi le moment ou cette Commission a 
entrepris de remettre sur pied l'economie des 
pays d'Europe qui · ont ete victimes de l'agres
sion fasciste. Toutefois, depuis la cessation des 
hostilites, bien des pays ne se sont pas conten
tes d'attendre une aide exterieure, mais, en utili
sant leurs propres ressources materielle)S, ils ont 
deja accompli des progres considerables, dans le 
sens du retour a la normale de leur economie 
ebranlee par la guerre. 

La Republique socialiste sovietique . de Bielo
russie, qui est justement l'un de ces pays, a ete 
occupee pendant trois ans par les agresseurs 
fascistes. Une proportion importante de sa popu
lation a ete tuee, 1.260.000 batiments et 1IDe par
tie importante de ses installations industrielles, 
de ses fermes collectives et de ses hOpitaux ont 
ete detruits. Elle comptait trois millions de sans
abris et les degats causes par 1 'agression fasciste 
s'elevaient a 175. millions de roubles. Mais en 
d~pit de ces terribles ravages, et des le jour 
meme de la liberation, .le peuple de la R.S.S. de 
Bielorussie s'est attaque a l'reuvre de reconstruc
tion. I.JeS maisons, les usin,es, 'les ecoles et les 
fermes collectives ont su,rgi des ruines. Un plan 
quinquennal a executer entre 1946 et 1950 a ete 
mis en application. II est congu de maniere a 
tirer le meilleur parti des ressources disponibles 
et a ne compter que sur l'aide des autres repu
bliques socialistes sovietiques et de !'ensemble de 
l'Union sovietique. 

La production de l'energie electrique a deja 
retrouve le niveau d'avant la guerre. La produc
tion industrielle ·a double, atteigriant presque le 
niveau d'avant guerre. La production de l'equi
pement in9,ustriel, et en particulier des machines
outiis, a fait d'immenses progres. De nombreuses 
installations industrielles nopvelles ont ete cons
truites et des credits orit ete affectes a de nou
velles constructions. 320.000 maisons d'habita
tioh . mit ete coristruites, permettant . de loger 
.1.800.000 personnes qui, jusque~la, avaient ete 
obligees de vivre dans des abris temporaires. La 
cadence de la reconstruction est telle qu'en 1946 
elle avait atteint 155 % des chiffres de 1945, et en 
1947, 132 % des chiffres de 1946. En 1947, la pro
duction agricole a depasse de 99 % celle de 1945. 
L'importance numerique du cheptel s'est conside
rablement accrue. Le revenu national et le budget 
national· des depenses ont ete multiplies, l'un et 

1 Voir Doouments. offioiels de W, deua;ieme session· de 
l'AssembUe (#n~rale, de)lXieme .commission, 43• ~ance et 
an'nexe 2'·a. · · · · 



fold. There was still a considerable shortage of 
housing in towns, but at the current rate of pro
gress, the targets of the five-year plan would be 
achieved. Measures tb increase industrial pro
duction included development of new industries 
to meet the need for railway locomotives, trac
tors, etc .. New ·areas were being afforested and 
cultivated, and an enormous increase in the num
bers of livestock was planned. 

In contrast to that increase in produ(ltion, he 
pointed out that in European countries partici
pating in the European Recovery Programme, 
1947 production had shown .no increase over that 
in 1946, and in some branches had actually fallen; 
for example, agricultural production in 1947 had 
been only 75% of that in 1946. 

He would not comment further on the impact 
of the Marshall Plan on those countries, since his 
views coincided with those ·which the Soviet 
Union representative had so clearly expounded 
during the debate. If the countries of Europe 
wished to restore their economies, which had 
been shattered by Nazi aggression, they should 
not wait on external aid, but should utilize to the 
full their domestic resources and the efforts of 
the indigenous population in order to increase 
production, particularly in heavy industry. 

He warmly supported the proposals made by 
the Soviet Union representative regarding the 
promotion of trade between European and other 
countries, since their implementation would 
bring about the necessary increase in production 
without infringing the economic sovereignty of 
the various countries of Europe. 

Mr. MIKAour (Lebanon) associated himself 
with the congratulations offered by several other 
representatives to the Economic. Commission for 
Europe. He was convinced that the work of the 
regional commissi<;>ns was extremely useful. The 
Economic Commission for Europe had set a fine 
example by its work for the relief of Europe, 
which was essential to world peace. He hoped 
that that example would be followed, in particu
lar, by the Economic Commission for the Middle 
East when that body came to be established. 

Mr. D'AscoLI (Venezuela) had studied the 
Commission's ·Report with the great interest 
which ·he felt for everything connected with 
European reconstruction, because he knew what 
the economy of Europe meant to the world, and 
did not forget what the world owed to Europe. 

The Report had given him great satisfaction 
because it showed that the Commission had dis
covered how to work effectively. Certain repre
sentatives had expressed 'the view that it should 

· have workeq on different lines; but in his 
opinio:r;t, whatever its deficiencies, the Commission 
had done its work effectively. He did not wish 

l'autre, par l'indice 4,5. En 1948, le volume 
des echanges commerciaux se trouvait triple. Il 
existe encore une grave crise du logement dans 
les villes, mais, a la cadence actuelle, tous les 
objecti:fs fixes au plan quinquennal seront 
atteints. Les mesures tendant a l'accroissement de 
la production industrielle prevoient la creation 
de nouvelles industries destinees a satisfaire les 
besoins en locomotives, tracteurs, etc. ·De nou
velles surfaces ont ete plantees en foret et le plan 
prevoit une augmentation tres considerable · du 
cheptel. 

En regard de cet accroissement de la produc
tion, l'orateur souligne que, dans les pays euro
peens qui participent au programme de la recons
truction europeenne, la production de 1947 
n'accuse aucune amelioration. par rapport a celle 
de 1946 et que meme elle a decline dans certains 
secteurs; c'est ainsi que la production agricole 
n'a atteint, en 1947, que 75 % des chiffres 
de 1946. · 

. Le representant de la R.S.S. de Bielorussie 
n'insistera pas davantage sur les repercussions 
du plan Marshall sur ces pays, puisque ses vues 
coincident exactement avec celles que le repre
sentant de l'Union sovietique a si clairement 
exposees . au cours des debats. Si les pays 
d'Europe veulent retablir leur economie boule
versee par l'agression nazie, ils ne doivent pas 
attendre une aide exterieure, mais utiliser au 
maximum leurs ressources propres et les efforts 
de leur propre population afin d'accroitre la 
production, en particulier dans les industries 

.lourdes. 

L'orateur appuie sans reserve les propositions 
du representant de l'Union sovietique pour le 
developpement des echanges commerciaux entre 
les pays d'Europe et les autres pays, car la mise 
en application de ces propositions donnerait a la 
production !'impulsion qui lui est necessaire 
sans porter atteinte a la souverainete economique 
des divers pays d'Europe. 

M. MIKAOUI (Liban) s 'associe aux felicitations 
adressees par plusieurs autres delegues a la 
Commission economique pour l'Europe. Il est 
convaincu de l'utilite des travaux des commis
sions regionales. La Commission economique pour 
l'Europe a donne par son travail au service du 
relevement general de l'Europe un tres bel exem
ple, et. ce travail est essentiel a la paix du monde. 
Il espere que cet exemple sera suivi, en parti
culier par la Commision economique pour le 
Moyen-Orient lorsque celle-ci aura ete creee. 

M. D'AscoLI (Venezuela) a apporte a l'examen 
du ·rapport de la Commission· economique pour 
l'Europe tout l'interet que lui inspire tout ce 
qui se rattache a la reconstruction de l 'Europe~ 
parce qu'il sait queUe importance l'economie de 
ce continent revet pour le monde en tier, et qu 'il 
n'oublie pas ce que le monde doit a l'Europe. 

Le. rapport lui a cause une vive satisfaction 
parce qu'on y voit que la Commission a· su vrai
ment faire reuvre utile. Certains representants 
ont exprime l'avis que la Commission aurait du 
conduire son travail differemment. A son avis, 
queUes que soient les lacunes, la . Commission . a 
vraiment travaille avec efficacite. Il ne veut pas 

136 



to associate himself with the criticisms levelled 
at the Economic and Employment Commission in 
connexion with the Report of the Economic Com- . 
mission for Europe; but since reference had been 
made to encroachments by the regional commis
sions on the competence of the functional commis
sions, he emphasised that the Economic and 
Employment Commission had confined itself to 
platonic declarations and that, if the Economic 
Commission for Europe had not existed, no other 
United Nations organ could have helped' in the . 
reconstruction of war-devastated Europe. But 
that did not mean that the functional commis
sions should be compelled to limit their activities 
to the domain of theory, and that only the regio
nal commissions were capable of obtaining con-

. crete results. He thought that the functiona1 
commissions might study co-ordination and the 
regional commissions tackle the practical side of 
the problems dealt with by functional commis
siom;. 

His sole object in intervening in the debate 
was to emphasise that it was not a question of 
deciding whether the regional or the functional 
commissions should alone carry on the work of 
the United Nations in. the economic field. He 
thought that the problem of reconstruction should 
be approached from every possible angle, and 
every possible means of alleviation made use of. 
He associated himself with some of the Chilean 
representative's remarks about the proceedings 
of the regional commissions· in general. He 
wished to repeat emphatically that a regional 
commission such as the Economic Commission 
for Europe, which achieved such good results, 
should be encouraged. It should not be refused 
the right to take decisions with executive force, 
for it was essential that it should make use of the 
most expeditious methods. 

The PRESIDENT, pointing out that the general 
debate on the Report of the Economic Commission 
for Europe had already been very full, hoped 
that representatives would make it possible for 
the Council soon to discuss and take a decision on 
the draft resolutions proposed by the represen
tatives of the Soviet Union and France respec
tively (E/884 and E/885). 

l\1;r. ARUTIUNIAN (Union of Soviet Socialist 
Republics) stated that the representative of 
Chile had specialized in making speeches hostile 

· to the Soviet Union, and not only at the current 
s.ession. He had not been very ·successful in his 
undertaking, and presumably he was aware of 
the fact, since during his attack on the Soviet 
Union at that meeting he had admitted that he 
vias saying nothing new. He not only repeated 
his . own remarks, but those of other people, 
whether made in the Council or elsewhere. The 
Government of the Soviet Union had long since 
become accustomed to such repetitive attacks. 
He would have expected them to cease when it had 
long been apparent that they were not successful. 
However, the reasons for their continuance 
were not tlie business of the Council. He would 
have lik~d to ;:tllay the Chilea,n representative's 

s 'associer aux critiques adressees a la Commis
sion des. questions economiques et de l'emploi, 
a propos du rapport de la Commission economi
que pour l'Europe, mais, puisqu'on a fait allusion. 
aux empietements des commissions regionales sur 
la competence des commissions techniques, l'ora
teur souligne que la Commission des questions 
economiques et de l'emploi s'est bornee a des 
declarations platoniques, et que, si la Commission 
economique pour l'Europe n'avait pas existe, 
aucun autre organisme de !'Organisation des 
Nations Unies n'aurait pu contribuer ala recons
truction de l'Europe devastee par la guerre. Cela 
ne veut pas dire que les commissions techniques 
doivent etre obligees de se cantonner dans le 
domaine de la theorie, et que seules les commis
sions regionales soient capables d'atteindre des 
resultats positifs. Il pense que les commissions 
techniques pourraient etudier les problemes de 
coordination, et les commissions regionales s 'atta
quer de fac;on pratique aux problemes tranches 
par les commissions techniques. 

En intervenant dans le debat qui s'est institue, 
sa seule intention est de souligher qu'il ne s'agit 
pas de sa voir si l 'action de l'Or,ganisation des 
Nations Unies dans le domaine economique doit 
s'exercer par l'intermediaire des seules commis
sions regionales ou des seules commissions tech
niques. Il pense que le probleme de la reconstruc
tion doit etre aborde de tous les points de vue 
possibles et que tons les moyens propres a obtenir 
une amelioration doivent etre utilises. Il s'asso
cie a certaines des observations du representant 
du Chili sur les travaux des commissions regio
nales en general. Il tient a repeter en y insistant 
qu'une commission regionale, comme la Commis
sion economique pour l'Europe, qui obtient de 
si bons resultats, doit etre encouragee. Il ne faut 
pas lui denier le droit de prendre des decisions 
ayant force executoire, car il est indispensable 
qu'elle utilise les moyens les plus expeditifs. 

Le PRESIDENT fait observer que le debat gene
ral sur le rapport de la Commission economique 
pour l'Europe a deja ete pousse tres loin et il 
exprime l'espoir· que les representants permet
tr.ont bientot au Conseil de discuter les projets 
de resolution proposes par le representant de 
l'Union sovietique et par le representant de la 
France, et de se proho:p.cer a leur sujet · (E/884 
et E/885). 

M. ARUTIUNIAN (Union des Republiques socia
listes sovietiques) constate que le representant 
du Chili s'est specialise, et pas seulement au cours 
de la session actuelle, dans les discours hostiles 
a 1 'Union sovietique. Il n 'a pas tres bien reussi 
dans cette entreprise, et il en a sans doute con
science lui-nieme puisque, au cours de la derniere 
attaque qu 'il a dirigee contre 1 'Union sovietique 
dans cette seance, il a admis que rien de ce qu 'il 
disait n'etait nouveau. Non seulement il repete ses 
propres observations, mais il y ajoute celles qui 
ont ete formulees par d 'autres personnes, au sein 
du Conseil ou ailleurs. Il y a longtemps que le 
Gouvernement de l'Union sovietique a pris !'habi
tude de ces fastidieuses attaques. L'orateur pen
sait qu'elles auraient cesse puisqu'il est evident 
- depuis longtemps deja - qu'elles n'obtiennent 
aucun. succes. Toutefois, il n'appartient pas au 

13T. 



fears· that he would be accused of serving mono
polistic interests, but the Chilean representative 
knew even better than he (Mr. Arutiunian) whom 
he was iri fact serving. 

When indUlging in diatribes against the Soviet 
Union, none of those who did so appeared to be 
aware of the value of objective truth; they felt 
that the end of maligning the Soviet Union justi
fied the means. The representative of Chile did 
not hesitate to adulterate facts. The views 
which he had aired during the current debate 
were in complete contradiction with the facts· 
stated by t,he Soviet Union delegation. 

For example, the allegation made by the repre
sentative of Chile that the Soviet Union was 
trying to prevent European countries from recei
ving external aid and credits was in complete 
contradiction with what he (Mr. Arutiunian) had 
said and with paragraph 2 of the draft resolution 
proposed by the Soviet Union delegation, v;hich 
stated that : "Any economic assistance to · the 
European countries from the United States of 
America and other States should be granted, not 
apart from the United Nations, but within its 
framework". It was perfectly legitimate to 
render aid to the war-devastated countries of 
Europe, providing that the principles of equa
lity of parties, of national sovereignty and of 
non-discrimination were observed. Only those 
who were hostile to the Soviet Union co~ld have 
misconstrued that sentence in the draft resolu
tion, in the way that the representative of Chile 
had done. Further, the Soviet Union felt that 
it was particularly suitable that the United States 
of America should grant credits to the countries 
of Europe, naturally without attaching shameful 
conditions thereto, since, of all the main partici
pants in the r;;truggle against fascist aggression, 
the United States of America alone had suffered 
no dev.astaticin. of its industry, agriculture, or 
other economic activity; on the contrary, the 
domestic production and national income of the 
United States had increased considerably during 
the war.:· It was just that the United States 
should help European countries to rehabilitate 
their economies, for those countries had borne the 
main burden of the struggle against fascism and 
had thereby helped the UnitPc~ States to avoid 
the widespread devastation al:vt shortages which 
Europe had suffered. But such help could not 
be made subject to secret· clauses and·· to· condi
tions w:hich involved violation of the sovereignty 
and independence of the countries seeking aid, 
interference in their domestic affairs,· and eco
nomic, political and other advantages for the 
United States of America. He believed that 
there were people in the United ·States who 
wished to help Europe without imposing such 
conditions, which had nothing in common with 
the high ideals of the United Nations. · The 
United States was using aid to Europe as a 
means of exploiting the difficulties of European 
countries, in order to establish an economic hege
mony and to reap political and ·other advantages. 
It· was 'to the slave~drivi:i:tg conditions attaching 
to the ·aid, 'not ,to ''the "principle of granting aid 

Conseil de rechercher pourquoi ces attaques se 
poursuivent. Le representant de l'Union sovieti
que aurait volontiers calme les craintes du repre
sentant du Chili, qui semblait se croire accuse 
d'etre au service des monopoles, mais le represen
tant du Chili sait au service de qui il est, mieux 
encore que ne le sait l'orateur. 

Aucun de ceux qui ont le gout des 
diatribes contre l 'Union sovietique ne semble 
avo:lr conscience de la valeur de la verite 

· objective ; ils estiment que vilipender l'Union 
sovietique est une fin qui justifie les moyens. 
Le representant du Chili n'hesite pas a 
.travestir les faits. Les vues qu'il a exposees au 
cours du debat sont en complete contradiction 
avec les faits que la delegation de l'Union sovie
tique a exposes. 

C 'est ainsi que !'allegation du representant du 
Chili, suivant laquelle l'Union sovietique essaie
rait d'empecher les pays europeens de recevoir 
de l'aide et des credits exterieurs, est en contra
diction avec ce que l'orateur a dit lui-meme ainsi 
qu'avec le texte du paragraphe 2 du projet de 
resolution propose par la delegation· de l'Union 
sovietique : « L'aide ecoriomique que les Etats
Unis et d'autres Etats peuvent apporter aux 
pays d'Europe doit etre assuree, non pas en dehors 
de !'Organisation des Nations Unies, mais dans 
le cadre de cette Organisation. » Il est parfaite
ment legitime de porter assistance aux pays 
d'Europe devastes par la guerre, a condition de 
respecter les principes de l'egalite des parties, 
de la souverainete nationale, et de la non-discri
mination. Ceux-la seuls qui sont hostiles a l'Union 
sovietique ont pu denaturer le sens de cette 
phrase du projet de resolution comme l'a fait le 
representant du Chili. Au surplus, l'Union sovie
tique estime qu'il convient particulierement que 
les Etats-Unis d 'Amerique accordent des credits 
aux pays d'Europe, mais, bien entendu, sans 
poser d'hmniliantes conditions a l'ouverture de 
ces credits, puisque de tous les pays qui ont 
pris nne part importante ala lutte contre l'agres" 

· sion fasciste, seuls les Etats-U nis d 'Amerique 
n'ont souffert aucune devastation de leurs indus
tries, de leur agriculture ni d 'aucun autre secteur 
de leur activite economique; au contraire, la pro
duction nationale et le revenu national des Etats
Unis ont considerablement augrriente au cours de 
la guerre. Il est juste que les Etats-Unis aident 
les pays europeens a reconstruire leur economie, 
car ce sont ces pays qui ont supporte la plus 
lourde part du fardeau dans la lutte contre le 
fascisme et qui ont, ains~, aide les Etat.s-Up.is 
a echapper a la devastation et ~ la misere g~ne
ralisee, dont a souffert l'E.urope. Mais nne aide 
de ce genre ne pent pas etre assortie de clauses 
secretes et de conditions qui entrainent la viola
tion de la souverainete et de l'independance 9,es 
pays qui la recherchent; elle ne ·pent etre. assortie 
d'une ingerence dans leurs affaires interieures. 
et ne doit comporteraucun avantage economique, 
politique ou autre pour les Etats-Unis d'Ameri~ 
que. L'orateur croit qu'il y a aux Etats-Unis 
des gens qui desirent aider l'Europ~ sans l1.1i 
imposer de telles conditions; qui sont absolument 
etrangeres au noble ideal de !'Organisation des 
Nations Unies. Les Etats-Unis se servent de l'aide 
a l'Europe comme d'un moyen . qui leur perinet 
d'exploiter les difficultes des pays european& 

138. 



itself, that the Soviet Union took exception. 
Some governments welcomed those conditions ; 
that was their responsibility. The representative 
of France. had said that the economic position 
in that countrywas so bad that the conditions 
had to be accepted. He himself could not agree 
that that was so. The Fren.ch representative 
had said that France would otherwise have been 
f~tced with bankruptcy; he (Mr. Arutiunian) 
wished to point out that a bankrupt often fell into 
a state of slavish dependence and that banks 
secured control over bankrupts. ·Mr. Hoffmann 
had stated repeatedly that United States aid to 
Europe was granted on a purely business basis. 
Were the relations between the United States and 
the countries of Europe to be those between ban
kers and bankrupts ~ Whatever the monetary 

. difficulties of France and other European coun
tries, United States aid should never be granted 
on such a basis. However, the Soviet Union did 
not believe. that Europe was economically bank
rupt .. 

He was glad that the representatives of the 
Unitl:ld Kingdom and Chile had raisedthe subject 
of communism. The reason why they had aired 
their limited knowledge of the subject was, as 
usual, t~at they wished to camouflage the real 
situation. If the Council wished to hear aspeech 
on communism, it· would surely select a better 
qualified speaker than either the United Kingdom 
or the Chilean representative. Their contention 
that the Soviet Union opposed the Marshall Plan 
because it would hinder the purposes of commu
nism by raising living standards in Europe, was 
in complete contradiction with the real purposes 
of communism. The aim of communism was that 
each should receive according to his needs, and 
that poverty and slavery should be abolished. 
The continued progress of communism, which 
rep~esented the highest form of human soCiety, 
would not be halted ·by the pitiful words of.the 
representative of Chile ; it had overcome far more 
formidable enemies than he. 

It was the right ()f each country to determine 
its own economic system. The Soviet ·Union 
recognized that right, and believed that the two 
systems, capitalism and communism, could exist 
side by side. The Soviet Union was a Member 
of the United Nations because it wished to find 
means for those two systems to exist peacefully 
together, and to ensure that every country should 
be free to choose its .own system. But nobody 
had been able to dispute the fact that Marshall 
Aid infringed the sovereignty of the countries 
receiving it. He could not tolerate United States 
administrators of the European Recovery Pro
gramme managing the affairs of so many Euro
pean countries, which should be free to manage 
their own affairs for themselves; they could do so 
without Councils of Foreign Ministers, without 
flying ambassadors and without pro-consuls 
bearing the title o.f "administrator". The. e~o-

pour y asseoir une hegemonie economique et en 
tirer des avantages politiques et autres. C'est· 
contre les conditions draconiennes qui s'attachent 
a cette aide et · non pas contre le principe de 
l'aide lui-meme, que s'eleve l'Union sovietique. 
Certains gouvernements accueillent a:vec faveur 
ces conditions; c'est leur affaire. Le representant 
de la France a dit que la situation economique de 
son pays etait si mauvaise que la France avait 
bien du accepter les conditions posees. ~e repre
sentant de l'Union sovietique ne peut admettre 
que tel ait ete le cas. Le representant de la 
France a dit que son pays n'aurait pas eu d'autre 
choix que la failiite, mais M. Arutiunian tient a 
souligner qu'un failli tombe souvent dans un etat 
de veritable esclavage et que les banques. s'assu
rent la mainmise complete sur les faillis. M. Hoff
man a dit a maintes reprises que l 'aide des 
Etats-Unis a l'Europe etait consentie sur une base 
purement commerciale. Les relations entre les 
Etats-Unis et les pays europeens vont-elles done 
etre celles qui existent . entre banquiers et 
faillis ~ QueUes que soient les difficultes mone
taires auxquelles la France et d 'autres pays 
europeens ont a faire face, l'aide des Etats-Unis 
ne devrait jamais leur etre itccordee sur d.e telles 
bases. Mais l'Union sovietique ne croit pas que 
l'Europe se trouve en etat de faillite economique. 

L'orateur se felicite de ce que les representants 
du Royaume-Uni et du Chili aient souleve la 
question du communisme. S'ils ont voulu faire 
parade de la connaissance limitee qu'ils ont du 
sujet, c'est sans doute, comme d'habitude, qu'ils 
desiraient camoufler la situation reelle. Si le 
Conseil desire entendre un expose sur le commu
nisme, il. choisira surement un conferencier plus 
qualifie que le representant du Royaume-Uni ou 
le representant du Chili. Leur allegation, suivant 
laquelle l'Union sovietique combattrait le plan 
Marshall parce que ce dernier compromettrait 
les buts du communisme en elevant le niveau de 
vie de l'Europe, est en contradiGtion formelle 
avec les objectifs reels du communisme. Le but 
du communisme, c'est que cha~un soit retribue 
selon ses besoins et que la pauvrete et l'esclavage 
soient supprimes. Les progres constants du com
munisme, qui represente la forme la plus parfaite 
de la societe humaine, ne seront pas ralentis par 
le lamentable discours du representant du Chili : 
le communisme a deja triomphe d'ennemis irifini
ment plus redoutaples. 

Chaque pays a le droit de choisir son propre 
regime economique. L'Union sovietique reconnait 
ce droit, et elle croit que les deux regimes, le 
capitalisme et le communisme, peuvent exister 
cote a cote. L'Union sovietique est · Membre 
des Nations Unies, parce qu'elle desire trou
ver le moyen de permettre a ces deux regimes de 
coexister dans la paix et d 'assurer a chaque pays 
la liberte de choisir son propre regime. Mais 
personne n'a pu nier que l'aide Marshall porta,t 
atteinte a la souverainete des pays qui en~bene
ficient. L'orate'ur ne pent tolerer que les adminis
trateurs ameribains du programme de relevement 
europeen gerent les affaires d'un si grand nombre 
de pays d'Europe, qui devraient demeurer libres 
de gerer eux-iuemes leurs propres affaires; ils 
peuvent le faire, sans Conseils des Ministres des 
affaires. etrangeres, sans ambassadeurs charges 
de missions sp~ciales et sans proconsuls portant 

i 

139 



nomic rehabilitation of ·Europe must be based 
on loftier principles. 

The views of the Soviet Union, which he had 
expounded during the debate, and which were 
embodied in his· delegation's draft resolution 
(E/884), were in the genuine national interest 
of the peoples of Europe and of the whole world. 
The resolution aimed at ensuring democratic co
operation between the countries of both Western 
and Eastern Europe. Without such co-operation 
it would be impossible to rehabilitate European 
economy. The countries of Europe were well 
aware of that fact. · If other countries wished to 
co-operate with Europe, it was .highly desirable 
that they should do so, but only on the basis of 
equality, without any attempt to impose condi
tions which infringed national sovereignty. 

The PRESIDENT suggested that, of the two 
draft . resolutions before the Council, that sub
mitted by the Soviet Union delegation (E/884) 
·should be examined first, since it preceded 
chronologically, and also went further than, that 
submitted by the French delegation (E/885). 

Mr. LYCHOWSKY (Poland) noted that both draft 
resolutions dealt with the work of the Economic 
Commission for Europe, but approached the prob
lem in rather different ways. The Soviet Union 
representative, in a resolution setting out his 
views on European reconstruction, had included 
certain principles relating to the specific terrns 
of reference which the Council should give to the 
Commission for its future work. On the other 
hand, the French draft resolution was limited to 
noting and approving progress in the work of the 
Commission without proposing that directives 
should be issued to it. 

The question of the Commission's future work 
was much . too important to the economic future 
of Europe for the Council to settle it by a mere 
vote on the resolutions submitted. To do so 
would be to disclaim interest in particular aspects 
of a problem whose importance went far beyond 
Europe. For that reason, the declaration of 
principle made by the Soviet Union representa
tive, which contained certain specific suggestions 
that could be applied to the terms of reference to 
be given by the Council to the Commission, and 
the draft resolution of the Frerich delegation, 
should both be rather more thoroughly studied. 
It seemed possible to reach a unanimous decision 
of the Council on the terms of reference to be· 
given to· the Commission, and the opportunity 
of doirig so ought not to be missed. He would 
like to take part in· the study of the resolutions. 
He accordingly proposed that the Council should 
not vote at once, but shoura refer the two drafts 
to the Economic Committee, instructing it ·to 
submit· a recommendation on the lines which the 
future work of the Economic Commission for 
Europe should follow. · 

Mr. McNEIL (United Kingdom) felt that if 
the Econ6mic Committee were asked to ·draft a 

le titre d' « administrateurs ». Le relevement 
economique de l'Europe doit etre fonde sur des 
principes plus eleves que ceux-la. 

Les vues de l 'Union sovietique que l 'orateur 
a exposees au cours du debat, et que reproduit 
le projet de resolution de sa delegation (E/884), 
sont conformes aux veritables interets des peu
ples de i'Europe et du monde entier. La resolu
tion a pour objet d'assurer la collaboration dern:o
cratique de tous les pays d 'Europe, de l 'Ouest 
comme de l 'Est. Sans cette collaboration, il serait 
impossible de restaurer l'economie europeenne. 
Les pays d'Europe le sa vent bien. Si d 'autres 
pays desirent collaborer avec l'Europe, il est 
eminemment souhaitable qu'ils le £assent, mais 
seulement :Sur lin pied d'egalite, et sans essayer 
aucunement d'imposer des conditions qui por
tent atteinte a la souverainete nationale des 
Etats. 

Le· PRESIDENT propose que, le Oonseil etant saisi 
de deux projets de resolution, celui de la delega
tion de !'Union sovietique (E/884) soit examine . 
d'abord parce qu'il a ete presente avant celui 
de la delegation franc;aise (E/885) et que, d'ail
leurs, il a une P,Ortee plus large. 

M. LYCHOWSKY (Pologne) constate que les deux 
projets de resolution concernent tons deux les 
travaux de . la Commision economique pour 
l'Europe, mais abordent le probleme de fac;on 
assez differente. Le representant de l'Union sovie
tique, dans une resolution enonc;ant ses vues sur 
la reconstruction europeenne, a inclus certains 
principes relatifs au mandat precis que le Conseil 
devrait don:rier a la Commision pour ses travaux 
futurs. En revanche, le projet de resolution de 
la delegation franc;aise se borne a enregistrer et 
a approuver les resultats des travaux de la 
Commission, sans proposer de donner des direc
tives a cette derniere. 

La question des travaux futurs de la Commis
sion est beaucoup trop importante pour l'avenir 

. economique de !'Europe pour que le Conseil 
puisse la trancher par un simple vote sur les 
resolutions presentees. Agir. de la sorte equivau
dra:it a: se desinteresser des aspects particuliers 
d'un probleme dont !'importance deborde de 
beaucoup !'Europe. C 'est pourquoi la declaration 
de principe, formulee par le representant de 
l'Union sovietique et contenant certaines indi
cations precises qui pourraient servir a l'etablis
sement du mandat que donnera le Conseil a la 
Commission, ainsi que la resolution proposee par 
la delegation frangaise, devraient faire tous deux 
l'objet d'un examen sensiblement plus appro
fondi. Il semble, en effet, qu'il soit possible au 
Conseil d'arriver a une decision unanime sur le 
mandat a donner a la Commission, et il convien
drait de ne pas negliger cette ·occasion. L'orateur 
voudrait participer a l 'examen des resolutions. Il 
propose done que le Conseil ne vote pas sur-le
champ, mais renvoie les deux projets au: Comite 
economique, qui serait charge de presenter un 
texte de recommandation sur le sens que doivent 
suivre les travaux futurs de la Commission eco
nomique pour l'Europe. 

M. McNEIL (Royaume-Uni) estime que, si le 
Comite . economique etait invite. a rediger une 

140 



single resolution on the basis of two resolutions 
which diverged so widely as those submitted by 
the delegations of France and the Soviet Union, 
it could not fail to become involved in fruitless 
repetition. of the debate which had taken place 
in plenary. He hoped that his failure to reply 
to the last speech of the Soviet Union represen
tative would not be interpreted as endorsement 
of that speech, but rather as a desire to save 
time on a matter which had already been fully 
discussed, and which the Council should dispose 
of itself, as quickly as possible, by voting on and 
adopting one of the draft resolutions submitted. 
If that procedure were adopted, he would pro
pose a minor amendment to the French draft, 
which would make it wholly acceptable to the 
United Kingdom delegation. 

Mr. THORP (United States of America) stated 
that he was in a dilemma similar to that of the 
United Kingdom representative, as to whether 
to reply to the last statement made by the Soviet 
Union representative. He would, however, only 
refer the Council to what he had said at the 
previous meeting - namely, that the European 
countries participating in Marshall Aid were 
apparently unaware of the conditions of slavery 
that it imposed on them. Consequently, it was 
difficult to give serious consideration to the com
ments of a member of the Cotmcil whose country 
stood outside that programme and whose sources 
o'f information were, to say the least, unofficial. 

. He could Irot support the proposal of the repre
sentative of Poland, since to refer both resolu
tions to the Economic Committee on an equal foot
ing. would be to invest the Soviet Union draft 
with an importance it did not deserve; for it was 
a curious assemblage of innocuous and generally 
acceptable platitudes in juxtaposition to other, 
highly controversial statements. For example, 
the first sentence of paragraph 1 of the draft, if 
liberally interpreted, stated a point on which 
there was general agreement. To speak of the 
"liberation" of the economy of Western Euro
pean countries, however, carried overtones and 
suggestions of previous enslavement which were 
unacceptable. Moreover, the reference to one
sided dependence of w·estern European countries 
on the United States of America ignored current 
large-scale trading with Canada, Australia and 
other parts of the world, and shifted emphasis 
from the main problem, which was that of in
creasing European production to a point where 
an equitable basis for trade could be established. 
Again, the first sentence of paragraph 4 was 
innocuous, although it might be considered un
necessary to address such a recommendation to 
the Economic Commission for Europe. But the 
second sentence of that paragraph did not cor
respond at all with existing or probable future 
conditions; the United States was attempting 
to assist European production to increase, not 
to bring it to a halt. He repeated that the Mar
shall Plan would not involve the shipment to 
European countries of any goods which they did 
not wish to receive. In paragraph 6 also, a recom
mendation to · the Economic Commission for 

resolution unique en s'inspirant de deux resolu
tions aussi divergentes que celles qu'ont soumises 
les delegations de la France et de l'Union sovieti
que, il serait a coup sftr amene a reprendre, sans 
utilite aucune, le debat qui a eu lieu en seance 
pleniere. L'orateur espere que, s'il ne replique 
pas a la derniere intervention du representant 
de l'Union .sovietique, on n'en deduira pas qu'il 
approuve c·ette intervention, mais qu'on verra 
plutot la le desir d'eviter de perdre du temps, sur 
une question qui a deja ete discutee a fond et 
sur laquelle le Conseil doit se prononcer lui
meme aussi rapidement que possible, en proce
dant a un. vote et en adoptant l'un des pro jets 
de resolution dont il est saisi. Si cette fagon de 
faire est approuvee, le representant du Royaume
Uni proposera d'apporter au projet de la dele
gation frangaise un leger amendement, qui ren
dra ce projet entierement acceptable pour la dele
gation du Royaume-Uni. 

M. THORP (Etats-Unis d'Anierique) se trouve 
en face d'un dilemme semblable a celui dont vient 
de parler le representant du Royaume-Uni, lors
qu'il se demande s'il doit repliquer a la derniere 
intervention du representant de l'Union sovieti
que. Toutefois, il se bornera a rappeler au Conseil 
ce qu 'jl. a dit a la seance precedente, a sa voir 
que les pays europeens participant au plan Mar
shall ne semblent 'pas se douter des conditions 
d'esclavage que ce plan leur impose. De ce fait, 
il est difficHe de prendre tres au serieux les 
observations d 'un membre du Conseil dont le 
pays se tient en dehors de ce programme, et 
dont les sources d'information ne sont pas -
c'est le moins qu'on puisse dire- officielles . 

Le representant. des Etats-Unis ne peut se 
rallier a la proposition du representant de la 
P9logne, car renvoyer les deux projets de reso
lution au Comite economique sans faire entre 
eux de difference equivaudrait a reconnaitre au 
projet de resolution de l'Union sovietique une 
importance qu'il ne merite pas; en effet, ce pro
jet est un assemblage bizarre de banalites inof
fensives et acceptables par tous, melees a d'autres 
affirmations eminemment discutables. Par exemple 
la premiere phrase du paragraphe 1 de ce projet, 
interpretee largement, exprime une idee sur 
laquelle on est generalement d'accord. Mais par
ler de liberer l'economie des pays de l'Europe 
occidentale, c'est sons-entendre · et insinuer qu'il 
existait anterieurement une situation d'esclavage, 
et cela est inadmissible. En outre, parler de la 
dependance miilaterale dans laquelle se trouve
raient les pays de !'Europe occidentale vis-a-vis 
des Etats-Unis. d'Amerique, c'est faire abstrac
tion des echanges commerciaux tres importants 
de ces pays avec le Canada, l'Australie et les 
autres parties du monde, et c'est detourner !'at
tention du probleme principal, qui consiste a 
augmenter ·la production europeenne de fagon a 
creer une base equitable pour les echanges com
merciaux. De meme, la premiere phrase du para
graphe 4 est inoffensive, encore que l'on puisse 
estimer inutile d'adresser une telle recommanda
tion a la Commission economique pour l'Europe. 
Mais la deuxieme phrase de ce paragraphe ne 
correspond pas du tout a la situation actuelle ni 
~ la situation· future probable; les Etats-Unis 
essaient d'aider !'Europe a accroitre sa produc
tion, et non a l'arreter. L'orateur repete que le 

141 



Europe, or indeed to any government, that eco
nomic rehabilitation and development should be 
carried out in such a way as to promote a rise 
in the standard of living of the masses, might 
appear unexceptionable, though hardly neces
sary. But that paragraph went on to speak of 
the increase in unemployment brought about by 
the Marshall Plan; so far was that from being 
the truth, that the Marshall Plan would result 
in a decrease in unemployment. 

In general, all those parts of the Soviet Union 
draft on which hope of reaching an agreement 
would be justified, dealt with matters of general 
significance and were hardly suitable for inclu
sion in a resolution on the work of the Economic 
Commission for Europe. Of the eighteen mem
bers of the Council, seven were European coun
tries. They would confirm that no difficulties had 
been experienced in the Economic Commission for 
Europe, or referred by it to the Council, regarding 
the general principles which were to guide the 
Commission in its work. Indeed, the Commission 
had been active in seeking concrete measures to 
deal with the general problems referred to in 
those sections of the Soviet Union resolution 
which, as he had indicated, might prove accep
table to all. If such general desiderata were to 
be laid down by the Council, their universal 
applicability must also be considered. For exam
ple, the Soviet Union delegation proposed that 
the Council should stipulate that "any economic 
assistance to the European countries from the 
United States of America and other States should 
be granted, not apart from the United Nations, 
but within its framework". Did the same prin
ciple hold good for economic assistance to the 
Far East, and to Latin America, or for the assis
tance which the Byelorussian representative had 
told them his country was receiving from the 
other States of the Soviet Union ~ 

With regard to the Economic Commission for 
Europe, the Council should express recognition 
of the value of the work it had already done and 
of its evident concern for the quality of its work 
and the adequacy of its organizational structure, 
as shown by the creation of an ad hoc committee 
on industrial development and trade. 

Mr. ARUTIUNIAN (Union of Soviet Socialist 
Republics) supported the Polish proposal, which 
he felt deserved serious consideration. It was 
not a matter of great importance whether the two 
draft resolutions were referred to the Economic 
Committee or to another committee specially 
appointed, or whether that special committee be 
called a drafting committee or not. What was 
important was that the Polish representative had 
put forward a conciliatory proposal which would 
enable the Council to reach a m1animous decision 

· on so vitally important a matter. There were 
so many factors tending to disrupt international 

plan Marshall n'aboutira pas a l'envoi anx· pays 
europeens de marchandises que ces pays ne 
desirent pas recevoir. On pourrait egalement ne 
rien trouver a redire, bien qu'elle soit d'une uti
lite contestable, a la recommandation adressee 
dans le paragraphe 6 a la Commission economique 
pour l'Europe, voire meme a tous les gouverne
ments, suivant laquelle le relevement et le deve
loppement economiques doivent etre assures de 
maniere a contribuer a elever le niveau de vie des 
masses populaires. Mais ce paragraphe se pour
suit par une allusion a !'augmentation du eM
mage que provoquerait le plan Marshall. Loin 
d'en etre ainsi, le plan Marshall aura pour effet 
de diminuer le chOmage. 

D'une maniere generale, toutes les parties du 
projet de resolution de l'Union sovietique, sur 
lesquelles on serait fonde a esperer realiser 
l 'accord, traitent de questions d'interet gene.ral 
et ne semblent guere etre a leur place dans une 
resolution sur les travanx de la Commission eco
nomique pour l'Europe. Sur les dix-huit me~bres 
du Conseil, il en est sept qui representent des 
pays europeens. Ils confirmeront que · la Com
mission economique pour l'Europe n'a pas 
eprouve de difficultes ou n'a pas du saisir le 
Conseil de ses difficultes, en ce qui concerne les 
principes generanx qui doivent guider ses tra
vaux. En fait, la Commission a recherche acti
vement les mesures positives propres a regler les 
questions generales auxquelles font allusion les 
parties du projet de resolution de l'Union sovie
tique qui - comme l'orateur l'a dit- pourraient 
etre acceptees de tous. Si le Conseil devait formu
ler des desiderata d'une portee aussi generale, il 
lui faudrait egalement examiner s'ils sont univer
sellement applicables; Par exemple, i'Union sovie
tique propose au Conseil de proclamer que 
« l'aide economique que les Etats-Unis et d'autres 
Etats peuvent apporter aux pays d'Europe doit 
etre assuree non pas (m ecartant le concours de 
!'Organisation des Nations Unies, mais dans le 
cadre de cette Organisation». Le meme principe 
est-il valable pour l'aide economique a !'Extreme
Orient eta l'Amerique latine, ou pour l'aide que 
le representant de la R.S.S. de Bielorussie a dit 
que son pays recevait des autres Etats de l'Union 
sovietique ~ 

En ce qui concerne la Commission economique 
pour l'Europe, le Conseildoit exprimer sa satis
faction de la valeur des travaux qu'elle a deja 
accomplis et du souci evident qu'elle a de la 
qualite de son travail ainsi que de la bonne onga
nisation de sa structure, dont temoigne 'la crea
tion d'un comite special charge du developpe
ment industriel et du commerce. 

M. ARUTIUNIAN (Union des Republiques socia
listes sovietiques) appuie la proposition du repre
sentant de la Pologne, qui· lui parait meriter un 
examen approfondi. Il ri'est pas d'une grande 
importance que les deux projets de resolution 
soient renvoyes au Comite economique ou. a un 
autre comite specialement designe a cet effet, ou 
encore que ce comite special rec;oive ou non le 
titre de comite de redaction. Ce qui importe, 
c'est que le representant de la Pologne a presente 
une proposition de conciliation, qui permettrait 
au Conseil d'aboutir a une decision unanime sur 
une question d'un interet si considerable. Il existe 

142 



harmony, that no attempt to reach unanimous 
agreement should be rejected out of hand. It 
seemed that the United States representative did 
not exclude the possibility of adopting a single 
resolution acceptable to all, as he had stated 
that certain parts of . the Soviet Union draft 
would meet with general agreement, although 
they might be no more than homespun truths. 
He agreed with. the United States representative 
that such platitudinous generalities were quite 
inadequate. At the opening meeting, however, 
the Presidei+t had drawn attention to the undi
minished importance of Europe as the focal point 
of the world, and the Economic and Social Coun
cil, the principal organ of the United Nations in 
the economic and . social fields, had, after six 
sessions, still adopted no resolution that laid down 
even basic principles for the economic reconstruc
tion and development of Europe; it had only 
determined the organizational structure and pro~ 
cedure by means of which that reconstruction and 
development were to be carried out. That \Vas 
why the Soviet Union delegation had taken the 
initiative in drafting and· submitting to the 
Council six guiding principles, which represented 
the views of the Soviet Union Government; they 
might not be acceptable to all, but would still 
provide a working basis on which unanimous 
agreement might be reached. He was gratified 
to hear that the United States representative was 
in agreement with some of those principles, and 
he appealed to all members to show a concilia
tory spirit. If all representatives could agree 
on the same passages in the Soviet Union resolu
tion as were approved by the United States repre
sentative, the Council might make a useful start 
by adopting the principles contained in those 
passages . forthwith. The remaining principles 
were clearly and frankly stated, without any 
old fashioned diplomatic circumlocutions, and 
would, he hoped, prove a useful working basis 
for discussion on the lines proposed by the repre
sentative of Poland. 

. Mr. BoRBERG (Denmark), while agreeing with 
the United Kingdom and United States repre
sentatives that no useful purpose woUld be served 
by referring the French and Soviet Union draft 
resolutions to the Economic Committee, never
theless felt that, in view of the importance of the 
subject, an ad hoc committee should be set up. 
He thought· the Soviet Union representative 
would agree that some re-arafting, even of his 
resolution, was necessary. For exampie, the Eco
nomic and Social Council could not take decisions 
for the United Nations as a whole :it could not 
decide that "any economic assistance. to the 
European countries from the United States of 
America and other States should be granted, not 
apart from the United Nations, but within its 
:framework". 

He therefore proposed that a Drafting Com
mittee be set up, comprising the representatives 
of France, Poland, the United Kingdom, the 
United States of America, the Union of Soviet 

de si nombreux facteurs tendant a compromettre 
!'entente internationale qu'aucun effort pour rea
liser l'accord unanime ne doit etre ecarte, saris 
mur examen. Il semble que le representant des 
Etats-Unis n'exclut pas la possibilite d'adopter 
une resolution unique qui puisse etre acceptee par 
to us, puisqu 'il a declare que certaines parties du 
projet de resolution de l'Union sovietique recueil
leraient l'appui general, bien qu'elles ne soient 
autre chose que de simples verites. L'orateur par
tage !'avis du representant des Etats-Unis sur 
l 'insuffisance de generalites aussi banales. Mais. a 
la seance d 'ouverture, le President a parle de l 'im
portance toujours egale de !'Europe, en tant que 
foyer de rayonnement mondial, et le Conseil eco
nomique et social, organisme principal des Nations 
Unies dans le domaine economique et dans le 
domaine social, a pres six sessions, n ;a ·pas encore 
adopte de resolution posant, ne fut-ce que des 
principes essentiels pour la reconstruction et le 
developpement economiques de l'Europe; ·il a 
seulement defini la structure administrative et 
la procedure dans le cadre desquelles devront 
s'operer cette reconstruction et ce developpement. 
C'est pourquoi la delegation de l'Union sovietique 
a pris !'initiative de rediger et de soumettre au 
Conseil six principes directeurs qui representent 
les vues du Gouvernement de l 'Union sovietique; 
ces principes peuvent ne pas etre acceptables 
pour tous, mais ils fourniront cependant une 
base de travail grace a laquelle on pourra peut
etre parvenir a un accord unanime. L'orateur est 
heureux d 'apprendre que le representant· des 
Etats-Unis se rallie a certains de ces principes, 
et il adjure tous les membres du Conseil de faire 
preuve d'esprit de conciliation. Si tous les repre
sentants peuvent accepter les memes passages de 
la resolution de l'Union sovietique qu'approuve 
le representant des Etats-Unis, le Conseil pourra, 
sans plus attendre, adopter utilement comme 

. point de depart les principes con tenus dans ces 
·passages. Les autres principes sont exposes clai-
rement, franchement, sans aucune des circonlo
cutions en usage dans la vieille diplomatic, et 
l'orateur espere qu'ils fourniront une base de 
travail utile a la discussion qui s'engagera dans 
le sens propose par le representant de la Pologne . 

M. BoRBERG (Danemark), tout en reconhaissant 
avec les representants du Royaume-Uni et des 
Etats-Unis qu'il ne servirait de rien de renvoyer 
les projets de resolution fran<;ais et sovietique 
au Comite economique, estime qu 'il faudrait 
neanmoins, etant donne !'importance du sujet, 
instituer un comite special. Le representant de 
l'Union sovietique conviendra sans doute qu'il 
est necessaire d'apporter, meme a son propre 
texte, certaines modifications de forme. Par 
exemple, le Conseil economique et social ne sau
rait prendre de decision pour le compte de !'en
semble des Nations Unies. Il ne saurait decider 
que « l'aide economique que les Etats-Unis et 
d'autres Etats peuvent apporter aux pays euro
peens doit etre assuree, non pas en ecartant le 
concours de !'Organisation des Nations Unies; 
mais dans le cadre de cette Organisation». 

En consequence, l'orateur propose de consti
tuer un comite ·de redaction, compose des repre
sentants des Etats-Unis d'Amerique, de la 
France, de la Pologne, du Royaume-Uni et de 

143 



Socialist Republics and any further representa
ti.ves of non-European countries whom the 
President might designate. 

Mr. THORN (New Zealand) stated that he, would 
oppose referring the two drafts to any commit
tee. Such procedure would be unnecessary and 
unprofitable. There had been a lengthy discus
sion in plenary on that item of the agenda, 
during which the Soviet Union representative, 
the indefatigable opponent of monopolies, had 
himself shown a tendency to monopolize the pre
cious commodity of time. Reference of the prob
lem to any committee whatever would only re
open discussion on the substance of the Soviet 
Union draft, which had been adequately com
mented on by the United States representative. 

After the lengthy discussion in plenary, they 
were in a position to decide between the two draft 
resolutions submitted. The Soviet Union draft · 
was animated by a spirit which was not accep
table to the New Zealand delegation. It 
contained the habitual and inevitable imputations 
against the European Recovery Programme and 
the motives of the United States administration. 
Its adoption, however it might be redrafted, 
would imply censure of the United States Govern
ment. How could the Soviet Union representa
tive imagine that it was reconcilable with the 
entirely opposite views expressed during the 
debate? 

Considered by itself, the final recommendation 
contained in the resolution was harmless, but 
superfluous. The establishment of an indeter
minate number of subsidiary organs of the Eco
nomic Commission for Europe, over and above 
the large number it already controlled and which 
covered almost every aspect of the European 
economic problem, would lead to confusion. 
Moreover, the Economic Commission for Europe 
had, at its third session, already adopted resolu
tions setting up machinery to deal with the very 
points referred to in the Soviet Union draft. 

The Council should decide at once what proce
dure it should adopt for dealing with the two 
draft resolutions. The New Zealand delegation 
would be prepared to support the French draft 
with whatever minor amendment the United 
Kingdom representative wished to make. 

Mr. McNEIL (United Kingdom) reluctantly 
opposed the proposal of the Danish representa
tive. The usual purpose of a drafting commit
tee was to find a common formula for reconciling 
two or more texts which were not widely diver
gent in substance. It was, he thought, unreason
able for the Soviet Union representative to expect 
the other members of the Council to compromise 
with him after he had attacked them in every 
conceivable manner for over two hours. And if 
the Soviet Union representative had in fact been 
anxious to reach unanimous agreement, he would 

l'Union des Republiques socialistes sovietiques, 
ainsi que de tels autres representants de pays 
non europeens que le President pourra designer. 

M. THORN (Nouvelle-Zelande) s'opposera a ce 
que les deux projets de resolution soient renvoyes 
a un comite, quel qu'il soit. Une telle faQon 
d'agir serait inutile et sterile. Le Conseil a consa
cre en seance pleniere a ce point de l'ordre du 
jour une longue discussion, au cours de laquelle 
le" representant de l'Union sovietique, adversaire 
infatigable des monopoles, s'est montre enclin 
a monopoliser cette chose si precieuse qu'est le 
temps. Renvoyer la question a un comite quel
conque n'aboutirait qu'a faire rebondir la dis
cussion sur le fond du projet de l'Union sovie
tique, que le representant des Etats-Unis a deja 
suffisamment commente. 

Apres la discussion prolongee qui a eu lieu en 
seance pleniere, le Conseil est en mesure de choi
sir entre les deux projets de resolution dont il 
est saisi. Celui qu'a soumis l'Union sovietique est 
anime d'un esprit que la delegation de la Nou
velle-Zelande ne saurait admettre. Il renferme 
les accusations habituelles et inevitables contre 
le programme de relevement de l'Europe et 
contre les mobiles dont s 'inspirerait le Gouverne
ment des Etats-Unis. Si ce projet devait etre 
adopte, quels que soient les remaniements de 
forme qu'on y apporterait, il impliquerait un 
blame a l 'adresse du Gouvernement des Etats
Unis .. Comment le representant de l'Union sovie
tique peut-il imaginer qu'une telle conclusion 
pourrait etre conciliee avec les vues diametrale
ment opposees qui se sont fait jour au cours des 
debats ~ 

Si on la considere isolement, la recommanda
tion finale contenue dans cette resolution .est inof
fensive, mais superfine. La creation d'un nombre 
indefini · d'organes subsidiaires de la Commission 
economique pour l'Europe, s'ajoutant a taus ceux 
- et ils sont nombreux - qui lui sont subor

donnes et dont la competence s'etend pour ainsi 
dire a tous les aspects du probleme de l'economie 
europeenne, ne ferait que conduire a la confusion. 
De plus, a sa troisieme session, la Commission 
economique pour l 'Europe a deja adopte des 
resolutions instituant le m~canisme necessaire au 
reglement des questions sur lesquelles porte le 
projet de resolution de l'Union sovietique. 

Le Conseil doit se prononcer sans plus attendre 
sur la procedure qu'il doit adopter a l'egard des 
deux projets de resolution. La delegation de hi 
Nouvelle-Zelande est disposee a donner son appui 
au projet de resolution de la delegation·franQaise, 
avec les legeres modifications que le representant 
du Royaume-Uni desire y apporter. 

M. McNEIL (Royaume-Uni) regrette de devoir 
combattre la proposition du representant du 
Danemark. D'ordinaire, le but d'un comite de 
redaction est de trouver une formule commune 
pour concilier deux ou plusieurs textes qui ne 
different pas sensiblement quant au fond. Il ne 
lui semble pas que le representant de l 'Union 
sovietique puisse raisonnablement esperer que les 
autres membres du Conseil accepteront un com
promis avec lui alors que, deux heures durant, 
illes a pris a partie de toutes les faQons possibles. 
Si le representant de l'Union sovietique avait 

144 



have done better never to have submitted to the 
Council the blatant propaganda contained in his 
resolution. The United States representative 
had pointed out some of the passages in that 
draft which could not possibly be acceptable to 
the whole Council. He himself would ask for 
what purposes, other than propaganda, para
graph 5 had been included. .Agricultural cre
dits were an important question; but if at any 
time the Commission were to decide that the orga
nization of such credits lay within its compe
tence, it would use normal banking processes and 
not rely on the adoption of propagandist recom
mendations. 

Mr. WILGRESS (Canada) stated that the ap
proaching closure compelled him to be brief. He 
would normally have supported the Danish pro
posal, had he thought there was a chance that 
such procedure would result in unanimous agree
ment; and he would have been influenced by the 
conciliatory remarks of the Soviet Union repre
sentative, had not the previous course of the dis
cussion convinced him that unanimity was impos
sible. 

He fully agreed with all that the United States 
representative had said regarding the Soviet 
Union draft resolution, and would support any 
proposal to discuss only the French draft, and 
that in plenary. 

Mr . .ARUTIUNIAN (Union of Soviet Socialist 
Republics) stated that notwithstanding the some
what unskilful attempt of the New Zealand 
representative to shame him into silence, he felt 
it was incumbent on him to give careful atten
tion to European economic problems, and that 
he had quite as much right to speak on them as 
the representative of a country that lay on the 
other side of the world. Of the six speakers who 
had commented on the Polish proposal, only one 
representative ,of a European country had op
posed it. Why were the representatives of non
European countries attempting to prevent the 
European countries from trying to reach common 
ground for agreement ? That that was the desire 
of the European countries was shown by the 
majority of three to one in favour of such an 
endeavour. He could not understand why the 
representatives of Canada and New Zealand 
thought they were better qualified to judge the 
issue than the representatives Of European coun
tries. It appeared that the New Zealand repre
sentative thought he would waste his time trying 
to reach agreement. But no one had suggested 
that he be asked to sit on the committee that 
would consider the two draft: resolutions; hence 
no waste of his time would be involved .. Simi
larly, the representative of Canada might with 
advantage limit his prognostics to questions 
which he was more competent to judge. 

The New Zealand representative had apparent
ly misunderstood the meanilig of the recommen
dation contained in the Soviet Union draft reso
lution. He (Mr. .Arutiunian) was well aware 

reellement desire que le Conseil parvienne a un 
accord unanime, il aurait beaucoup mieux: fait 
de ne jamais presenter le marceau de propagande 
flagrante. que constitue sa resolution. Le repre
sentant des Etats-Unis a cite certains des pas
sages de ce projet de resolution, qui ne pourront 
en aucun cas obtenir l'agrement de tons les · 
membres du Conseil. Il demande, quant a lui, 
pour quel motif autre que la propagande le para
graphe 5 y figure. La question des credits agri
coles est importante, mais, si, a un moment ou 
un autre, la Commission devait decider que I' orga
nisation de ces credits est de sa competence, elle 
aurait alors recours a des methodes bancaires 
normales et ne compterait pas sur l'adoption de 
recoinmandations qui sont pure propagande. 

M. WILGRESS (Canada) declare que la cloture 
imminente des debats lui impose d'etre bref. Nor
malement, il aurait donne son appui a la proposi
tion du Danemark, s'il avait cru qu'il y eut 
quelque chance que la solution qu'elle recom
mande dil.t aboutir a un accord unanime; et il se 
serait laisse influencer par les remarques conci
liantes du representant de l'Union sovietique, si 
le tour· anterieurement pris par la discussion ne 
l'avait convaincu que l'unanimite etait impos
sible. 

Il approuve sans reserve tout ce qu 'a dit le 
representant des Etats-Unis du projet de resolu
tion de l'Union sovietique, et il donnnera son 
appui a toute proposition recommandant de ne 
discuter que le projet de resolution de la delega
tion fraw;aise, et cela en seance pleniere. 

M . .ARUTIUNIAN (Union des Republiques socia
listes sovietiques) declare qu'en depit de la tenta
tive assez maladroite du representant de la 
N ouvelle-Zelande pour le forcer a garder un 
silence confus, il croit de son devoir d 'accorder 
nne vigilante attention aux problemes de l'econo
mie europeenne, et qu'il- est tout aussi fonde A 
prendre la parole a leur sujet que pent l'etre le 
representant d'un pays situe dans l'autre partie 
du monde. Sur les six orateurs qui ont parle de 
la proposition de la Pologne, il n'y a qu'un seul 
representant de pays europeen qui se soit pro
nonce contre cette proposition. Pourquoi les 
representants de pays non europeens s'efforcent
ils d:empecher les pays d'Europe de faire taus 
leurs efforts pour trouver un terrain d'entente ~ 
Que tel soit bien le vreu des pays europeens, 
c'est ce que montre la majorite de trois contre 
un en faveur d'un tel effort. L'orateur ne peut 
comprendre pourquoi les representants du 
Canada et de la Nouvelle-Zelande se croient plus 
aptes a juger de ce probleme que les represen
tants des pays europeens. Il semble que le repre
sentant de la Nouvelle-Zelande craigne de perdre 
son temps en essayant de realiser l'accord. Mais 
personne n 'a propose que ce representant soit 
invite a sieger . au comite qui examinerait les 
deux pro jets de resolution; il n 'y aura done pas 
de temps perdu pour lui. De meme, il y aurait 
interet a ce que le representant du Canada borne 
ses pronostics aux questions qu'il est en mesure 
de juger avec plus de competence. 

Le representant de la Nouvelle-Zelande semble 
avoir mal interprete le sens de la recommanda
tion contenue dans le projet de resolution de 
l'Union sovietique. L'orateur n'ignore pas que la 

145 

10 



that the Economic Commission for Europe had 
set up subsidiary organs to cover certain parti
cular aspects of the problems mentioned, but his 
delegation's proposal was that committees be set 
up to cover the basic problems themselves; the 
number of such committees was immaterial. 

He urged the President not to curtail discus
sion on the Polish proposal, rejection of which 
would be detrimental to the dignity of the Coun-
cil. · 

Mr. McNEIL (United Kingdom) suggested that 
it would be desirable for the Council to sit until 
8 p.m., or until item 7 of the agenda had been 
disposed of, whichever was the earlier. 

Mr. BORIS (France) observed that the Soviet 
Union representative had said that non-European 
countries were speaking too frequently; he would 
no doubt admit that certain European represen
tatives had refrained from speaking for a long 
time, He (Mr. Boris) considered that there was 
no ground for hurry and asked for adjournment. 

Mr. THORN (New Zealand) indicated, with the 
assent of the President, that he would make the 
statement he had intended to make prior to the 
motion for adjournment, before he went on to 
support that motion. 

He deeply resented the suggestion that New 
Zealand had not as much right to concern 
herself with European affairs as the countries of 
Europe itself. He recalled that his country had 
been involved in two wars, the origin of which 
had lain in Europe. New Zealand had contri
buted £ 600 million to the cost of the Second 
World War, and had made as big a contri
bution for its size, as any nation, to the victory 
of democratic ideas in both the First and Second 
World Wars. The New Zealand people, moreover, 
knew that as long as peace and security were not 
on a firm footing in Europe, their country would 
always face the threat of becoming involved 

.in yet another world war. New Zealand had 
extended credits running into millions of pounds 
to two European countries : one of those conn
trier? was France; the other was Czechoslovakia, 
to which 1 million credit had ·been given · for 
the purchase of New Zealand wool, and that since 
the events of February. Every intelligent New 
Zealander was as keenly interested as himself in 
European events. 

He also resented the airy manner in which the 
Soviet Union representative had dismissed the opi
nions expressed on the Polish proposal by the 
representatives of Canada, the United States and 
New Zealand. The Soviet Union representative 
had implied that the majority of significant opi
nion supported that proposal. New Zealand had 
been made a member of the Council by decision of 
the General Assembly and had full voting rights 
on each and every matter before the Council. 

Commission economique pour l 'Europe a cree 
des organes subsidiaires pour traiter de certains 
aspects particuliers des problemas en cause, mais 
ce que propose sa delegation, c'est de creer des 
comites qui traiteront des problemas fondamen
taux eux-memes. Le nombre de ces comites 
importe peu. 

Le representant de l'Union sovietique demande 
instamment au President de ne pas ecourter la 
discussion sur la proposition de la delegation 

. polonaise, dont le rejet 'nuirait a la dignite du 
Conseil. 

M. McNEIL (Royaume-Uni) estime qu'il serait 
souhaitable que le Conseil puisse sieger' soit 
jusqu'a 20 heures, soit jusqu'a ce qu'une decision 
ait ete prise sur le point 7 de l'ordre du jour au 
cas ou le debat sur ce point se terminerait avant 
20 heures. 

M. BoRIS (France) remarque que le represen
tant de l'Union sovietique a dit que les repre
sentants des pays non europeans prenaient trop 
sou vent la parole; il reconnaitra sans aucun · 
doute que les representants de certains pays 
d'Europe se sont tres longtemps abstenus de par
ler. Le representant de la France estime qu 'il 
n'y a pas lieu de se presser, et il demande l'ajour
nement. 

M. THORN (Nouvelle-Zelande) indique, avec 
l'assentiment du President, qu'il fera la decla
ration qu'il avait !'intention de prononcer avant 
le depot de la motion d'ajournement, avant de 
donner son appui a cette motion. 

Il lui a ete tres penible d'entendre insinuer 
que la Nouvelle-Zelande n'aurait pas, autant que 
les pays europeans, le droit de s'interesser aux 
affaires de l'Europe. Il rappelle que· son pays a 
pris part a deux guerres, qui l'une et l'autre ont 
eu leur origine en Europe. La Nouvelle-Zelande 
a con:tribue pour 600 millions de livres aux 
depenses de la deuxieme guerre mondiale et a 
apporte une contribution aussi vaste, etant donne 
son etendue, que n'importe quel autre pays a la 
victoire des idees democratiques dans la pre
miere comme dans la deuxieme guerre mondiale. · 
En outre, le peuple de la Nouvelle-Zelande sait 
qu'aussi longtemps que la paix et la seeurite ne 
seront pas fermement etablies en Europe, son 
pays sera toujours menace d'etre entraine dans 
une autre guerre mondiale. La Nouvelle-Zelande 
a ouvert a deux pays europeans des credits s'ele
vant a des millions de livres : l'un de ces pays est 
la France; l 'autre est la Tchecoslovaquie, qui a 
re~u un credit d'un million de livres pour acheter 
de la laine de Nouvelle-Zelande, et cela apres les 
evenements de fevrier. Tout Neo-Zelandais intel
ligent s'interesse aussi vivement que l'orateur lui
meme a ce qui se passe en Europe. 

Il lui a ete egalement desagreable d'en
tendre le representant de l'Union sovietique 
rejeter cavalierement les vues exprimees sur la 
proposition de la delegation polonaise par les 
representants du Canada, des Etats-Unis et de 
la Nouvelle-Zelande. A en croire le representant 
del 'Union sovietique, la majorite des opinions qui 
comptent au Conseil se seraient prononcees en 
faveur de cette proposition. La Nouvelle-Zelande 
est devenue membre du Conseil par decision de 

146 



··:,. 

In conclusion, he supported the motion for 
adjournment. 

l\fr. ARUTIUNIAN (Union of Soviet Socialist 
Republics) stated that he .opposed the adjourn
ment in view of the importance of the matter 
under discussion. Whatever ·the pressure of 
business, the question of European economic co
operation deserved full consideration. 

He also opposed the motion so as to give the 
New Zealand representative the opportunity to 
speak on European economic affairs at as great 
length as he wished, not only for the light relief 
his statements often brought to the Council, but 
because the Soviet Union delegation recognized 
that all representatives should be allowed to 
speak on any question as long and as often as 
they liked. But if the New Zealand represen
tative felt as much concern as he had made out 
for the establishment of lasting peace in Europe, 
why did he oppose the attempt to reach common 
agreement on action by European countries ~ He 
hoped the New Zealand representative would 
make a further contribution to the debate and 
appealed to him to use that opportunity seriously, 
so as to help them find a solution acceptable to 
all. Unanimity would be in the interests of all 
countries represented on the Council, including 
New Zealand. 

It was decided by 11 votes to 3 with 2 absten
tions to adjourn discussion of the Report of the 
Economic Commission for Europe. 

The meeting rose at 6.30 p.m. 

ONE HUNDRED 
AND EIGHTY~FIFTH MEETING 

Held at the Palais des Nations, Geneva, 
on Thursday, 29 July 1948, at 3 p.m. 

President : Dr. Charles MALIK 

17. Continuation of the discussion on 
the Report of the Economic Com
mission for Europe 1 (E/791, E/791 
Add. 1 and 2, E/884/Rev. 1, E/885, 
E/894 and E/895) 

The PRESIDENT recalled that there were two 
proposals before the Council : the Polish proposal 
that the Soviet Union draft resolution (E/884/ 
Rev.1) and the French draft resolution (E/885) 
be referred to the Economic Committee ; and the 
Danish proposal that the President should nomi
nate representatives to sit on a drafting 

1 See Supplement No. 10 (E/791). 

l'Assemblee generale, et elle jouit pleinement du 
droit de vote sur toutes les questions dont le 
Conseil est· saisi. 

En conclusion, il appuie la motion d'ajourne
ment. 

M. ARU'l'IUNIAN (Union des Republiques socia
listes sovietiques) declare qu'il s'oppos~ a l'ajour
nement, etant donne !'importance de la question 
discutee. Si charge que soit le programme du 
Coll.seil, la question de la collaboration econo
mique europeenne merite d'etre etudiee a fond. 

Il combat ~galement cette motion pour donner 
au representant de la Nouvelle-Zelande !'occasion 
de parler aussi longtemps qu'il le voudra sur 
les affaires economiques de l'Europe, non seule
ment pour la detente que ses declarations 
apportent souvent aux seances du Conseil, mais 
aussi parce que la delegation de l'Union sovie
tique reconnait que tous les delegues doivent 
etre autorises a parler sur toutes les questions 
aussi longtemps et aussi souV'ent qu'ils le de§irent. 
Mais, si le representant de la Nouvelle-Zelande a, 
autant qu'il l'a dit, le souci d'etablir une paix 
durable en Europe, pourquoi s'oppose-t-il a 
l'effort fait pour realiser l'accord sur les mesures 
a prendre par les pays europeens ~ Le represen
tant de l'Union sovietique espere que le repre
sentant de la Nouvelle-Zelande apportera une 
nouvelle contribution aux debats, et illui demande 
instamment d'apporter tout le serieux possible 
a son intervention, de mamere a aider le Conseil 
a trouver une solution que tous ses membres 
puissent accepter. L'unanimite servira les interets 
de tous les pays representes au Conseil, y compris 
la Nouvelle-Zelande. 

Le Conseil decide, pa1' 11 voix contre 3, avec 
2 abstentions, d'ajourner la discussion du rap
port de la Commission economique pour l'Europe. 

La seance est levee a 18 h. 30. 

CENT QUATRE-VINGT
CINQUIEME SEANCE 

Tenue au Palais des Nations, a Geneve, 
le jeudi 29 juillet 1948, a 15 heures 

President : M. Charles MALIK 

17. Suite de la discussion sur le rapport 
de la Commission economique pour 
!'Europe 1 (E/791, E/791 Add. 1 
et 2, E/884/Rev.l, E/885, E/894 et 
E/895) 

Le PRESIDENT rappelle que le Conseil est saisi 
de deux motions : l'une, presentee par la dele
gation de la Pologne, propose que le projet de 
resolution presente par l'Union sovietique (E/884/ 
Rev.1) et le projet de resolution presente par la 
France (E/885) soient renvoyes au Comite eco
nomique; l'autre, presentee par la delegation du 

1 Voir le supplement n° 10 (E/791). 

147 




